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To the Mayor and City Council 
Thomasville, Alabamf!. , 

Ac;counting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 
that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison 
information on pages 3 through 9 and page 42 be presented to supplement the 
basis financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of. 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurances on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the City of Thomasville, Alabama's financial 
statements as a whole. The Supplemental Information are pre~ented for purposes 
of additional analy$iS and are not a required part of the financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular 
A-133,Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also 
not a required part ofthe financial statements. The Supplemental Information as 
listed in the table of Contents and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
are the responsibility of JI?.anagement and were derived from and relate directly to 
the underlying accounting and other r~cords used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the. 
financial statements as a whole. 

Jif.,.~..........,; ,4 c. <:.-cw.-v·~ ~ 2y .5:_,. v: (..p.-f, " .. ::1-;,t c. • 

Hollon Accounting Services, Inc. 
February 3, 2017 



The Statement of Net Assets represents the strengthening or weakening of the financial position 

of the City. The Statement of Net Assets, which is determined by the difference between assets and 

liabilities, is used as an indicator of the City's financial position. 

The Statement of Activities reports all changes in net assets as soon as the underlying event giving 

rise to the change occurs in the recent fiscal year. Therefore, some revenues and expenses that are 

reported will not generate cash flows until future time periods. 

Both statem~nts separate the functions of the City of Thomasville into two categories of activities: 

1) governmental and 2)business-type. Governmental activities are those that are primarily 

supported through sa.les taxes, property taxes, and gasoline taxes. Government activities of the 

CitY of Thomasville include general government, public safety, public work, and recreation and 

cultural. Business-type activities, such as the Water Works and Sewer, are those that charge a 

user fee and charges to recover all or a portion of their costs. 

Fund Financial Statements 
The City of Thomasville, like most state and local governments, are required to comply with 

finance-related legal matters. Fund accounting is used to maintain control over resources by 

separating them by specific activities and objectives into funds, grouping of related accounts. 

The City of Thomasville can be divided into two basic categories: governmental funds and 

proprietary funds. · 

Governmental Funds- Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported 

as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City's 

basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can 

readily be converted into .cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will 

be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an 

accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which provides a t:onversative 

short -term spending focus. 

·Proprietary Funds- Like the government-wide financial statements, proprietary funds financials 

report the same type of information, except in much more detail. Proprietary funds are used to 

report services that the City provides and then charges the customer a fee. The City of \homasville 

operates and maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report services 

' the City provides to the citizens and then charges citizens a user fee in order to generate revenue, 
such as the City's utility system. The functions presented in the enterprise funds are identical to 

the functions presented as business-type activities in the entity-wide financial statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that helps the user thoroughly understand the financial 

data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are presented on 

pages 10 through 32 of this report. 



Other Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and the required accompanying notes, this report also 

presents mandatory supplementary information regarding the City of Thomasville's progress in 

funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary 

information can be found on page 34 of this report. Immediately following on pages 34-54, the 

non-major governmental funds are presented in the combining statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
The City's condensed Statement of Net Assets as of September 30, 2016, derived from the 

government-wide Statement of Net Assets is presented below: 

Tota.l Asset.s 

Total Liabilities 

Total Net Assets: 

Invested in capital assets 

Current Year 

Total Assets 

Total liabilities 

Total Net Assets: 

Invested in capital assets · 

Current Year 

Combined Both -

Gov't and Water portion 

Total Assets 

Total Liabilities 

Total Net Assets: 

Invested in capital assets 

Current Year 

2016 
Governmental 

Activities 

$ 20,231,026 

18,689,911 

1,541,115 

1,074,002 

2016 
Business Type 

Activities 

$ 38,168,288 . 

16,289,000 

21,879,288 

91,732 

2016 
Total 

$ 58,399,314 

$ 34,978,911 

$ 23,420,403 

1,165,734 

2015 
Governmental 

Activities 

$ 19,991,467 

22,053,200 
(2,061,733) 

$ 514,743 

2015 
Business Type 

Activities 

$ 42,066,874 

17,738,303 

24,328,571 

$ 4,526,483 

.2015 
Total 

$ 62,058,341 

$ 39,791,503 

$ 22,266,838 

$ 5,041,226 

Difference 
Amount 

$ 239,559 

$ (3,363,289) 

$ 3,602,848 

$ 559,259 

Difference 
Amount 

$ (3,898,586) 

$ . (1,449,303) 

$ (2,449,283) 

$ (4,434, 751) 

Difference 
Amount 

$ (3,659,027) 

$ (4,812,592) 

$ 1,153,565 

$ (3,875,492) 



. CITY OF THOMASVILLE'S CAPITAL ASSETS 

2016 2015 
.Governmental Governmental Difference 

Activities Activities Amount 

land and Improvements 6,628,377 $ 2,827,773 $ 3,800,604 
Construction in Progress 3,800,604 (3,800,604) 
Buildings 16,742,682 15,789,941 952,741 
Equipment 4,923,256 4,801,995 121,261 
Furniture & Fixtures 367,989 367,989 
library Materials 615,590 615,590 

Accumulated Depreciation (9,046,868) (8,212,425) (834,443) 

Totals $ 20,231,026 $ 19,991,467 $ 239,559 

2016 2015 
Business Type Business Type Difference 

Activities Activities Amount 

Water & Sewer System 43,710,844 $ 43,679,655 $ 31,189 

land and Improvements 1,098,634 1,098,634 

Construction in Progress 

Buildings 1,359,436 1,298,893 60,543 

Accumulated Depreciation (8,000,626) (7,289,860) (710,766) 

Totals $ •38,168,288 $ 38,787,322 $ (619,034) 

2016. 2015 Difference 

Total Total Amount 
'·~ 

Water & Sewer System 43,710,844 $ 43,679,655 $ 31,189 
land and Improvements 7,727,011 3,926,407 3,800,604 
Construction in Progress 3,800,604 (3,800,604) 

Buildings 18,102,118 17,088,834 1,013,284 

Equipment 4,923,256 4,801,995 12.1,261 
Furniture & Fixtures 367,989 367,989 
library Materials 615,590 615,590 

Accumulated Depreciation (17,047,494) (15,502,285) (1,545,209) 

Totals $ 58,399,314 $ 58,778,789 $ (379,475) 



OUTSTANDING DEBT- GOVERMENTAL FUNDS 

2009 General Obligation Secured Warrants $ . 4,630,000 $ 5,240,000 

2011 General Obligation Secured Warrants 4,345,000 4,380,000 

2013 General Obligation Secured Warrants 3,760,000 3,895,000 

Bank Notes 5,785,207 3,381,414 

Capitalized Lease Payments 169,704 171,250 

Total $ 18,689,911 $ 17,067,664 

OUTSTANDING DEBT- BUSINESS FUNDS 

2010 Water and Sewer Revenue Boards $ 2,970,000 $ 3,120,000 

2014 Series Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds 13,319,000 13,599,000 

$ 16,289,000 $ 16,719,000 

Grand Total $ 34,978,911 $ 33,786,664 

The City of Thomasville continues to have an"A" rating from Standard & Poor rating agency for the 

general obligation debt. This bond rating is a solid indication of the sound financial condition of 

the City of Thomasville. . 

The City has the ability to encourage development, which as additional locations of office, retail, 

residential, and industrial development within the jurisdiction of the City. This is by the ability 

to place taxes, fees, and service charges to the individual or industry. The City places emphasis 

on encouraging economic development, and is presently seeking higher levels of development, 

which in turn produces job creation. 

Request for information 

Should additional questions arise, please contact the City Clerk at P. 0. Box 127, Thomasville, 

AI. 36784 to request additional information. These financial reports are arranged to provide 

the citizens, customers, and creditors with an overall view of the City of Thomasville's 

financial condition and to show the City's accountability. 



CITY OF THOMASVIUE, AlABAMA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
COMPONENT UNITS 

INDUSTRIAL THOMASVILLo THOMASVILLE THOMASVILLE 
Governmental Buslnesswtype: DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC HEALTH CHAMBER 

ASSETS Ac:tlvltles Activities Total BOARD LIBRARY AUTHORITY OF COMMERCE 

current Assets: 

cash 

Unassigned $ 116,342 $ 224,562 $ 340,904 4,727 16,912 6,279 26,053 

Investments 

Accounts Receivable-Nat 504,531 399,354 $ 903,885 

Due from other funds 3,021,298 1,364,764 $ 4,386,062 

Prepaid Expenses 17,384 11,409 $ 28,793 

Total Current Assets 3,659,555 2,000,089 5,659,644 

. Restricted Assets: 

Cash CUstomer Deposits 130,014 $ 130,014 

Investments 805,946 737,516 $ 1,543,462 

Total Restricted As!ets 935,960 737,516 $ 1,673,476 

Capital Assets: 

Land 6,628;377 1,098,634 $. 7;727,011 

Depreciable Assets-Net 13,602,649 38,110,678 $ 51,713,327 

.. Total capital Assets 20,231,026 39,209,312 $ 59,440,338 

Total Assets 24,826,541 41,946,917 $ 66,773,458 4,727 16,912 6,279 26,053 

Deferred Outflows: 

Deferred loss on refunding 167,649 72,433 $ 240,082 

LIABILITIES 

Current Uabllttles: 

Accounts Payable 155,964 748,586 904,550 

Accrued Uabllltles 33,246 33,246 

Accrued Interest 250,235 250,235 4,364· 

Due to other funds 4·,323,973 62,089 4,386,062 2,157,298 570,500 

Bonds and Notes Payable 1,672,428 444,000 2,116,428 1,262,068 

Compensated Absences 120,955 47,603 168,558 

Total Current Liabilities 6,556,801 1,302,278 . 7,859,079 2,157,298 1,836,932 

Non-Current Liabilities: 

Compensated Absences 245,574 110,740 356,314 

Bonds and Notes Payable 18,279,551 15,845,000 34,124,551 

Net Pension Obligation ·1,333,717 576,231 1,909,948 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 19,858,842 16,531,971 36,390,813 

Total Liabilities 26,415,643 17,834,249 44,249,892 2,157,298 1,836,932 

Deferred Inflows: 

Excess Earnings of Pension Plan Investments 157,325 67,425 224,750 

·NET POSITION 

Net Investment In Capital Assets 1,_541,115 21,449,288 22,990,403 

Restricted for: 

Prepaid Items 17,384 17,384 
20,138 "' 20,138 Capital Projects 

Debt Sel'\lice (2,267,831) 2,668,388 400,557 (2,152,571) (1,830,653) 

Assign to: 

Unrestricted (deficit) (889,584) 16,912 
Total Net Assets (Deficit) o$ (1,578,778) $ 24,117,676 $ 22,538,898 $ 4,727 $ 16,912 $ 6,279 $ i6,053 

See acc:ompanylng notes to tho flnanc:lal statttmants. 



CllY OF TliOMASVIUE ALABAMA 
STATEMENT OF AcnVITIES 

FOR THE YfAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NET (ExPENSE! REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
PROGRAM REVENUE PRIMARY GOVERNMENT COMPONENT UNITS 

fiNES FEES ~ CAPITAL GRANTS INDUSTRIAl THOMASVILLE THOMASVIUE 
AND CHARGES GRANTS AND AND GOVERNMENT A BUSINESS-TYPE DEVElOPMENT THOMASVILLE !:!Em!i. CHAMBER OF 

EXPENSES FOR SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONi'RIBUTIO~S ~ ACTIVITIES IQI& BOARD PUBLIC LIBRARY ~ ~ 

ACTIVITIES: 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities 
General government $ 31335,353 5 $ (3,335,353) $ (3,335,353) 
Public safety 2,198,185 305,011 {1,893,174) (1,893,174) 
Highways and Streets 1,088,588 {1,088,588) (1,088,588) 
Sanitation 750,822 786,723 35,901 35,901 
Education and Culture 354,058 {354,058) (354,058) 
Health arid Welfare 187,001 83,232 (103,769) {103,769) 
Economic and Industrial 42,886 610,641 567,755 567,755 
Interest on long Term Debt 454,955 (454,955) (454,9551 

Total governmental activities 8,411,848 ' 1,174,966 610,641 !6,626,241) {6,626,241) 

Business-type activities 

Wastewater 3,942,087 2,663,122 (1,278,9651 (1,278,965) 
Total busines,s.type activities 3,942,087 2,663,122 (1.278,965) (1,278,965) 
Tatar primary government 12,353,93S 3,838,088 (1,278,965) (7,905.~06) 

C~mponent units: 

Industrial Development Board ~71,907 $ $ 81,766 $ {490,141) 
Thomasville Publrc library 210,068 4,000 $ (206,068) 
Thomasville Health Authority 48,495 $ {48,495) 
Thomasville Chambt:!r of Commerce 75,647 $ (75,647) 

Total component units $ ___ 906,117 $ $ $ 85,766 (490,141) (206,068) (48,495! (75,647) 

General Revenue: 
Sales Revenue 8,020,055 8,020,055 

License and Permits 723,475 723,475 

Personal Property 322,288 322,288 
Excise Tax 639,983 639,983 

Gain on Disposal of Assets 21,864 21,864 
RentafTax 30,616 30,616 

Transfers 53,013 {850,000) (796.987) 408,000 210,068 121,000 57,919 

Total general revenues 9,811,294 {850,000) 8,961,294 408,000 210,068 121,000 57,919 

Change in Net Position $ 3,185,053 $ (2,128,965) $ 1.056,088 $ (82,141) $ 4000 $ 72.505 $ (17,728) 

Net:Position- Beginning {4,763,831) 26,246,641 21,482,810 (2,070,430) ' 12,912 (1,903,158) 43,771 

Net Position- Ending $ (1,578,778) $ 24,117,676 $ ~538,898 $ {2,15l,~_l1_ $ ____ 16,Jl1L $ _(1.~0,653) $ 26,043 



CI1Y OF THOMASVIllE, AlABAMA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Capital Debt Special Other 

Projects Service Revenue Governmental 

ASSETS General ____ ;,!~pds Funds Funds Funds Total 
OJrrentAsset5: 

cam 
Unassigned $ 116,342 $ $ $ $ $ 116,342 

Accounts Receivable-Net 504,531 $ 504,531 

Due from otherfunds 2,921,298 100,000 $ 3,021,298 

Prepaid Expenses 17,384 $ 17,384 

Total Current Assets 3,559,555 100,000 $ 3,659,555 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash Customer Deposits 130,014 $ 130,014 

Investments 533,731 20,138 198,106 53,971 $ 805,946 

Total Restricted Assets 663,745 20,138 198,106 53,971 $ 935,960 

capital Assets: 

Depreciable Assets-Net 13,602,649 $ 13,602,649 

land 6,628,377 $ 6,628,377 

Total Capital Assets 20,231,026 $ 20,231,026 

Total Assets 24,454,326 -20,138 298,106 53,911 $ 24,826,541 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS: 

Employer pension contributions 167,649 $ 167,649 

167,649 $ 167,649 

liABIUTIES 
~urrent liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 155,964 $ 155,964 

Accrued liabilities 33,246 $ 33,246 

Accrued l nterest 245,871 4,364 $ 250,235 

Due to other funds 1,302,675 240,000 53,500 2,727,798 $ 4,323,973 

Bonds and Notes Payable 1,672,428 $ 1,672,428 

Compensated Absenees 120,955 $ 120,955 

Total Current liabilities 3,531,139 240,000 53,500 2,732,162 $ 6,556,801 

No~Current Liabilities: 

Compensated Absences '245,574 $ 245,574 

Bonds and Notes Payable 17,017,483 1,262,068 $ 18,279,551 

RSA Pension Lrability 1,333,717 $ 1,333,717 

Total Non-current liabilities 18,596,774 1,262,068 $ 19,858,842 

Total Liabilities 22,127,913 240,000 53,500 3,994,230 $ 26,415,643 

DEFERRED INFlOWS: 

Excess earnings of pension. plan irNestments 157,325 $ 157,325 

NET ASSETS 
Net Investment in capital Assets 1,541,115 $ 1,541,115 

Restricted for. 

Prepaid items 17,384 $ 17,384 

Capital Projects 20,138 $ 20,138 

Debt Service 1,672,428 (3,940,259) $ (2,267,831) 

Asggnedto: 

Unrestrlcted{defidt) (914,328) (219,862) 244,606 $ (889,584) 

Total Net Assets (Deficit) $ 2,336,737 ~219,862) $ $ 244,606 $ (3,940,259) $ (1,578,778) 

See accompanying notes to the fi11ancial statements. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental 
Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2016 

Total fund balance - tdtal governmental funds 

Capital assets not used in governmental activities: 

Land 

Buildings and Buildin~ Improvements, net of accumulated depreciation 

. Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 

Furniture and Fixtures, net of accumulated depreciation 

Library Materials, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Capital Assets 

Internal Service funds are used by Management to charge the costs of employee 

medical insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilites of the internal 

service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows applicable to future periods 
Employer pension contribution 
Excess earnings of pension plan investments 

Total deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources 

Long-Term Liabilities not due and payable in current period 

Accrued interest on Bonds 
General Obligation Warrants and other notes payable 

Compensated Adsences 

Net Pension Obligation 

Total Long term Liabilites 

Total net position of Governmental Activities 

6,628,377 
12,786,631 

.660,568 
70,599 
84,851 

219,005 
167,649 
157,325 

245,871 
18,689,911 

366,529 
1,333,717 

$ (889,584) 

$ 20,231,026 

(828,171) 

$ 543,979 

$ (20,636,028) 

$ (1,578,778) 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Fiscal Year. Ended September 30, 2016 

CAPITAL DEBT SPECIAL OTHER 

PROJECT SERVICE REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL 
REVENUES GENERAL FUNDS FUNDS FUND FUNDS TOTAL 

Taxes $ 6,889,425 $ $ $ 72,453 $ - $ 6,961,878 
Intergovernmental 85,507 30,369 115,876 
Charges for Services 2,109,876. 108,426 23,084 2,241,386 
Donations - 1,000 1,000 

Fines and Forfeits 267,418 267,418 
Other 339,950 196 63,516 403,662 

Total Revenues 9,692,176 211,444 87,600 9,991,220 

EXPENDITURES 
General Government 3,335,353 229,575 3,564,928 
Public Safety 2,198,185 68,891 2,267,076 
Highways and Street 1,088;588 130,000 1,218,588 
Sanitation is0,822 750,822 
Health and Welfare 187,001 ·85,062 272,063 
Capital Outlay 363,381 561,845 56,333 92,443 1,074,002 
Economic and Industrial Development 42,886 212,218 255,104 
Eclucation 809,013 48,194 857,207 
Debt Service: 

Principal 780,000 146,826 926,826 
Interest - 454,955 176,861 631,816 

Total Expenditures 8,775,229 561,845 1,234,955 340,286 906,117 11,818,432. 

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 916,947 (561,845) (1,234,955) (128,842) (818,517) (1,827,212) 

Other Sources (Uses): 
.. Grants and Interest Income 119,118 307,949 97,798 85,776 610,641 

Proceeds Long Term Borrowing- Net 
Sale of City Property 21,863 30,000 51,863 

Transfers (Out) In 176,000 205,000 1,234,955 796,987 2,412,942 
Transfers Proprietary Funds 850,000 850,000 

Total Other Sources (Uses) 1,166,981 (48,896) 1,234,955 127,798 882,763 3,363,601 

Excess Revenues and Other Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 2,083,928 (48,896) (1,124) (73,754) 1,960,154 

Fund Balance, October 1 24,000 55,303 248,270 (3,866,505) (3,538,932) 
Prior Period Adjustment 
Fund Balance, September 30 $ 2,107,928 $ 6,407 .2 $ 247,146 $ (3,940,259) $ (1,578,778) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

· in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Activities 
September 30, 2016 

Differences in amounts reported for Governmental Activities 

Net change in fund balance- Total Governmental Funds 

Capital Outlay, r.eported as expenditures in Governmental Funds 

Depreciation expense in Governmental Capital Assets 

Net effectoftransaction involving sale of Capital Assets 

General Obligation Warrants Payable 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and,therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmantal funds: 

Accrued Interest payable 

Compensation Absences 

Pension contributions 

Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions 

Changes in net assets of governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 1,960,154 

1,074,002 

710,664 

21,864 

$ 1,806,530 

780,000 __ __;..::..:.:,;;,.:.:::.... 

$ 780,000 

245,871 

366,529 

(64,083) 

(1,909,948) 
(1,361,631) 

·:' 

$ ==3=,1=8=5,=0=53= 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
GENERAL FlJND 

Fiscal Years Ended September 30 

REVENUES 2016 2015 
Taxes 

Real and Personal $ 322,288 $ 354,995 
Sales Tax 6,413,856 5,909,448 
Local Gas Tax 153,281 145,080 

6,889,425 6,409,523 

Licenses and Permits 
Alcohol Vendor 101,076 102,959 
Business Licenses 617,824 656,340 
Permits 672,998 9,478 
Franchises 4,575 4,693 

1,396,473 773,470 

Intergovernmental Revenues 
Oil Production Tax 3,429 4,529 
T.V.A. Receipts . 24,264 24,982 
Motor Vehicle Licenses 18,711 14,579 
Capital Improvement 39,102 39,142 

85,507 83,232 

Garbage Fees 713,403 786,723 

Fines and Forfeits 267,693 305,011 

Interest Income 1,939 2,127 

Miscellaneous and Other 
Arts Council Events 31,335 32,450 
Auditorium Events · 991 1,423 

Orants 119,118 769,271 
Refunds and Reimbursements 43,992 201,658 
Rental Income 30,616 18,650 
Reports, Fees and Permits 96,101 13,954 
Donations 21,864 20,149 
Parks & Recreation & Other Income ) 112,839 

456,855 1,057,555 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 9,811,294 $ 9,417,641 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

GENERAL FUND - CONTINUED 

Administrative 
Salaries Mayor 
Salaries Council 

EXPENDITLJRES 

Salaries Clerk and Assistants 
Salaries Janitorial 
Salaries Public Works Director 
Payroll Taxes, Retirement and Medical Insurance 
Expense Allowance - Mayor and Council 
Operation and Repair ofVehicles 
Office Expense 
Utilities and Telephone 
Dues, Travel and Training 

Police Department 
Salaries and Employer Expense 
Materials, Supplies and Maintenance 
Operation and Repair of Vehicles 
Communications Expense 
Training, Dues and Unifom1s 
Telephone and Utilities 

Court Department 
Salaries ·and Employer Expense -City Judge 
Salaries and Employer Expenses - City Prosecu.tor 
Salaries and Employer Expenses - Court Clerk 
Office Expense 
Travel, Training and Dues 
Court System and Jail Expense 
Telephone and Utilities 
Alaban1a Police Officer's Annuity Fund 
Crime Victim's Compensation 
State Treasurer 

Ordinance Compliance ) 
Salaries and Employer Expenses 
Operation and Repair of Vehicles 

·Ordinance Expense 
Telephone and Utilities 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

2016 

49,557 $ 
29,000 

156,295 
24,238 
76,147 
92,073 
34,200 
10;141 
18,563 
65,654 
28,021 

583,888 

1,531,162 
21,018 

108,122 
14,124 
39,875 
87,595 

1,801,897 

15,000 
10,200 

115,297 
4,895 

26,030 
24,538 

7,610 
5,412 
4,055 

104,337 
317,372 

59,315 
2,986 
3,062 

13,553 
78,916 

20.15 

48,873 
30,000 

152,335 
24,039 
74,792 
96,843 
34,800 
34,595 
15,863 
64,947 
14,985 

592,072 

1,493,893 
10,584' 

114,565 
18,749 
23,842 
79,361 

1,740,994 

15,000 
10,200 

114,067 
4,895 
3,147 

16,839 
7,423 
5,941 
3,469 

118,965 
299,946 

53,456 
3,784 
5,111 
8,912 

71,263 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

GENERAL FUND -CONTINUED 

2016 
Street Department 

Salaries and Employer Expenses 349,998 
Street and Traffic Lights 3,729 
Street Maintenance and Improvements 569,564 
Professional Fees 108 
Operation and Repair of Vehicles . 69,910 
Equipment Rental and Repair 77,668 
Materials and Supplies 2,923 
Uniforms 10,573 
Telephone and Utilities 4,116 

1,088,588 

Sanitation 
Salaries and Employer Expenses 18,121 
Operation of Vehicles and Equipment 9,174 
Landfill. Expense 770 
Utilities and Miscellaneous 778 
Advance Disposal Fees 721,980 

750,822 

Parks and Recreation 
Salaries and Employer Expenses 242,169 
Operation and Repair of Vehicles 17,277 
Equipment Repair 18,707 
Materials and Supplies 2,848 
Utilities and Telephone 59,222 
Repairs and Maintenance-Parks 93,058 

433,281 
Economic Development 

Salaries and Employer Expense 1,033 
Office Expense 1,265 
Professional Fees 27,480 
Dues, Travel and Training 13,109 

42,886 

2015 

410,033 
131,500 
197,268 

600 
60,138 

122,103 
8,945 
4,562 
8,947 

944,096 

29,323 
10,206 

770 
150 

724,634 
765,083 

297,552 
27,737 
8,495 

947 
3,739 

21,420 
359,890 

9,950 
1,747 

35,015 
3,935 

50,647 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

GENERAL FUND- CONTINUED 

Nutrition Site 
Salaries and Employer Expenses 
Materials, Supplies and Maintenance 
Telephone and Utilities Expense 
Transportation Expense 

}\.S.V.P. Program 
Salaries and Employer Expenses 
Office Rent and Expenses 
Telephone and Utilities 
Dues, Travel and Training 
R.S.V.P. Recognition 

Capital Outlay 
Administrative 
Police Department 
Street Department 
Parks and Recreation 
Nutrition Department 
Economic Development 
RSVP Department 
Library 

Contributions 
Thomasvihe Schools 
Water Works Sewer Board 
Clarke County Contributions 
Community Development 
Southwest Alabama Mental Health Authority 
Coastal Gateway Regional Alliance 
Boys and Girls Club 
Airport Committee 
Arts Council 
HIPPY Program 
R & DUrban Forester 
THA 1/2cent Tax Expense 

2016 

26,939 
1,256 
8,343 

27,599 
64,138 

98,857 
7,683 
8,732 
4,156 
3,434 

122,862 

187,692 
88,654 
30,185 
48,288 

8,562 
363,381 

809,013 
55,000 
89,619 
20,923 
7,031 

500 
128,336 

5,000 
11,000 
5,000 
5,000 

79,000 
1,215,421 

2015 

26,430 
3,766 
7,912 

26,091 
64,199 

97,645 
600 

14,629 
375 

4,691 
117,940 

6,999 
164,793 
26,091 
66,247 

527 
231,231 

673 
18,182 

514,743 

544,877 
55,000 
9,165 

18,532 

25,000 
160,583 

5,000 
5,000 
5,000 
5,000 

833,157 



CITV OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

GENERAL FUND- CONTINUED 

2016 

Debt Service 
Principal 780,000 
Interest 454,955 

1,234,955 

Other Expenditures 
Arts Council Events II,OOO 
Auditorium Events 4,026 
Sales Tax Collection - RDS 79,579 
Insurance 232,575 
Professional Fees 235,654 
Maintenance 108,619 
Trustee Fees 5,371 

676,824 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 8,775,230 $ 

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures 1,036,064 

Other Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from Sale of City Property 21,864 
Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowing 
Transfers In ( Out ) 176,000 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues and Other Sources Over 
· Expenditures and Other Uses 1,233,928 

Fund Balance, October 1 (2,812, 706) 

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ {I ,578,778) $ 

2015 

691,384 
247,545 
938,929 

1,652 
1,589 

69,457 
232,750 
145,232 
87,945 
6,948 

545,573 

7,838,532 

1,579,109 

7,365 

{429,000} 

1,157,474 

2,736,583 

3,894,057 
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CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PRORIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016. 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVlTIES 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricteq Investments 
Accounts Receivables, Net 
Due from other Funds 
Prepaid Items 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets, Not being Depreciated 
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated 

Total Non Current Assets 

Total Assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS: 
Employer Pension Contributions 

Total Deferred Outflows 

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
Due to Other Funds 
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 
Compensated Absences 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non Current Liabilities: 
Long-Term Debt 
Compensated Absences 
Net Pension Obligation 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS: 
Excess Earnings of Pension Plan Investments 

Total Deferred Inflows 

NET POSITION: 
Net Investment in Capitai Assets 
Unrestri~ted (Deficit) 

Total Net Position 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

WATER& 
SEWER 

224,562 
737,516 
399,354 

1,364,764 
11,409 

2,737,605 

1,098,634 
38,110,678 

39,209,312 

41,946,917 

72,433 
72,433 

748,586 
62,089 

444,000 
47,603 

1,302,278 

15,845,000 
110,740 
576,231 

16,531,971 

17,834,249 

67,425 
67,425 

21,449,288 
2,668,388 

24,117,676 

The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements: 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION. 
PRORlETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Goods and Services 

Total Operating Reveunes 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of Sales and Services 
Salaries and Benefits 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Utilities 
Insurance 

·Other 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 

NON OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 
Interest Income 
Interest Expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Income Before Transfers 

TRANSFERS IN - Operating 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

TOTAL NET POSITION- BEGINNING, 

TOTAL NET POSITION - ENDING 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

WATER& 
SEWER 

$ 2,663,122 
$ 2,663,122 

$ 240,613 
$ 730,236 
$ 347,944 
$ 342,109 
$ 87,058 
$ 891,803 
$ 710,766 

$ 3,350,529 

$ (687,407) 

$ 1,500 
$ 2,662 
$ 595,720 
$ (591,558) 

$ (1,278,965) 

$ 730,236 

$ (548,729) 

$ 24,666,405 

$ 24,117,676 

The accompanying notes are in integral part qfthesefinancial statements. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PRORIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts from Customers 
Payment to Suppliers 
Payments to Employees 

Net Cash from (used for) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) 
NONCAPITAL FINANCJNG ACTIVITIES: 

Transfers from other funds 
Net cash payments from (to) other funds 

Net Cash from (used for) Noncapital Financing Activities 

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Principal Paid on Long-Term Debt 
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt 

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Interest Received 

Net Cash from Investing Activities 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH FROM (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITlES: 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments. to Reconcile Operating Income 

to Net Cash Provided by Operations: 
Depreciation Expense 

(Increase) Decrease in Assets and Deferred Outflows: 
Accounts Receivable 
Deferred Outflows 

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities and Deferred Inflows: 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows 

Net Cash From (Used For) Operating Activities 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITI,ES 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

WATER& 
SEWER 

2,663,122 
(690,053) 
(730,236) 

1,242,833 

730,236 
(425,000) 
305,236 

(430,000) 
(595,720) 

(1,025,720) 

2,662 
2,662 

525,011 

798,284 

1,323,295 

(548,729) 

710,766 

1,134,763 
72,433 

(58,975) 
(67,425) 

1,242,833 

. The accompanying notes are in integral part ofthesefinancia/.siatements. 



City ofThomasville, Alabama 

Notes to Financial Statements-Continued 

Long-Term Debt- The Water Works and Sewer Board 

The Water Works and Sewer Board of the City of Thomasville, Alabama currently has outstanding Series 

2010 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds in the amount' of $3,545,000. These bonds constitute special 

limited obligations of the Water Works and Sewer Board, payable, as to both principal and interest, 

solely out of the revenues derived by the Board from the operations of its water works plant and 

distribution system and its sanitary sewer system, remaining ·after payment of the reasonable expenses 

of operating and maintaining the system. These Bonds do not constitute a charge against the general 

credit of the City ofThomasville, Alabama and the City ofThomasville, Alabama is not liable in any 

manner for the payment of the principal of, or the interest on these obligations. The bond indenture 

agreements contain provisions for early retirement at various premium rates. 

·The Water Works and Sewer Board of the City of Thomasville, Alabama has defeased certain previous 

Bond issues by placing funds in irrevocable escrow accounts. These funds were invested in U.S. Treasury 

obligations that together with interest earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future 

payments of principal, interest and redemption premiums on the refunded issues. As the Water Works 

and Sewer Board has satisfied it obligations through consummation of the refunding transactions 

described herein, these bonds are not included in the accompanying schedule of the City's outstanding 

long-term debt. 

The City ofThomasville, Alabama has borrowed a collective current amount of$ 13,869,000 of a line 
of credit available totaling$ 13,869,000 for the purposes of construction of a Water Treatment Plant. This 

began on November 7, 2011 for the construction of raw intake lines, potable water transmission and a water 

tank. This is a Loan sponsed by the U.S. Department of Agriculture, with a fixed rate of 3.25 %for a 30 year period. 



NOTE - LONG TERM DEBT 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the notes payble outstanding at September 30, 2016 

are as follows: 
/' 

THE WATER WORKS AND SEWER BOARD 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

SERIES 2010 WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS 

DATED JULY 1, 2010 

Year Ending BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES Interest 
September 30: Principal Interest Total Rate 

2017 $ 155,000 $ 119,738 $ 274,738 3.10% 

2018 $ 160,000 $ 114,655 $ 274,655 3.35% 

2019 $ 165,000 $ 109,005 $ 274,005 3.60% 

2020 $ 170,000 $ 102,848 $ 272,848 3.75% 

2021 to 2025 $ 955,000 $ 406,870 $ 1,361,870 3.8% to 4.20% 

2026 to 2030 $ 1,165,000 $ 178,356 $ 1,343,356 4.25% to 4.625% 

2031 $ 200,000 $ 9,250 $ 209,250 4.63% 

Totals $ 2,970,000 $ 1,040,722 $ 4,010,722 

THE WATER WORKS AND SEWER BOARD 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

SERIES 2014 WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS 

DATED JANUARY 1, 2014 Series A 

Year Ending BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES Interest 
September 30: Principal Interest Total Rate 

2017 $ 132,000 . $ 218,295 $ 350,295 3.50% 

2018 $ 137,000 $ 218,120 $ 355,120 3.50% 
2019 $ 141,000 $ . 217,980 $ 358,980 3.50% 

2020 $ 147,000 $ 217,770 $ 364,770 3.50% 
2021 to 2025 $ 812,000 $ 1,086,155 $ 1,898,155 3.50% 
2026to2030 $ 967,000 $ 1,080,730 $ 2,047,730 3.50% 
2031 to 2035 $ 1,148,000 $ 1,074,395 $ 2,222,395 3.50% 

2036to 2040 $ 1,363,000 $ 1,066,870 $ 2,429,870 3.50% 
2041 to2044 $ 1,271,000 $ 847,175 $ 2,118,175 3.50% 

Totals $ 6,118,000 $ 6,027,490 $ 12,145,490 



THE WATER WORKS AND SEWER BOARD 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

SERIES 2014 WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS 

DATED JANUARY 1, 2014 Series B 

Year Ending BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES Interest 

September 30: Principal Interest Total Rate 

2017 $ 83;000 $ 137,095 $ 220,095 3.50% 

2018 $ 86,000 $ 136,990 $ 222,990 3.50% 

2019 $ 89,000 $ 136,885 $ 225,885 3.50% 

2020 $ 92,000 $ 136,780 $ 228,780 3.50% 

2021 to 2025 $ 511,000 $ 682,115 $ 1,193,115 3.50% 

2026 to 2030 $ 606,000 $ 678,790 $ 1,284,790 3.50% 

2031 to 2035 $ 720,000 $ 674,800 $ 1,394,800 3.50% 

2036to 2040 $ 856,000 $ 670,040 $ 1,526,040 3.50% 

2041 to 2044 $ 799,000 $ 532,035 $ 1,331,035 3.50% 

Totals $ 3,842,000 $ 3,785,530 $ 7,627,530 

THE WATER WORKS AND SEWER BOARD 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

SERIES 2014 WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS 

DATE JANUARY 1, 2014 Series C 

Year Ending BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES Interest 

September 30: Principal Interest Total Rate 

2017 $ 74,000 $ 115,628 $ 189,628 3.375% 

2018 $ 77,000 $ 115,526 $ 192,526 3.375% 

2019 $ 79,000 $ 115,459 $ 194,459 3.375% 

2020 $ 82,000 $ 115,358 $ 197,358 3.375% 

2021 to 2025 $ 449,000 $ 575,471 $ 1,024,471 3.375% 

2026 to 2030 $ 534,000 $ 572,603 $ 1,106,603 3.375% 

2031 to 2035 $ 631,000 $ 569,329 $ 1,200,329 3.375% 

2036to 2040 $ 744,000 $ 565,515 $ 1,309,515 3.375% 

2041 to 2044 $ 689,000 $ 449,246 $ 1,138,246 3.375% 

Totals $ 3,359,000 $ 3,194,135 $ 6,553,135 

The Aggregate Grand Total of All Loans are as follows: 

BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Principal Interest Total 

$ 16,289,000 $ 14,047,877 $ 30;336,877 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE~ ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

Reporting entity- The City of Thomasville, Alabama (the City) was incorporated under the laws of the 
State of Alabama in 1888 and operates under a Mayor-Council form of government. As required by 
accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial statements of the 
reporting entity include those of the City of Thomasville, Alabama (the prim.ary government) and its 
component units. The component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial 
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. 

The component unit's column in the combined financial statements includes the financial data of the 
Thomasville Public Library (the Library), the Industry Development Board, the Health Authority, and the 
Chamber of Commerce which are determined to be component units ofthe City. 

The City's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the boards of other organizations, 
but the City's accountability for these for these organizations does not extend beyond making the 
appointments. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE~ ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE l -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued) 

Government-wide and fund financial statements- The basic financial statements consist of the government­
wide financial statements and fund financial statements. Both sets of statements distinguish between 
governmental and business-type activities. Government-wide financial statements are comprised of the · 
statement of net position and the statement of activities. The effects of interfund activity have been removed 
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental 
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities, which 
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the City's governmental 
activities are offset by the City's program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a with a specific program or function. Program revenues at'e classified into three categories: (1) fines, 
fees, and charges, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. Charges 
for services refer to direct recovety from customers for services rendered. Grants and contributions refer to 

. revenues restricted for specific programs whose use may be restricted further to operational or capital items. 
The general revenues section displays revenue collected that he!ps support all functions of government and 
contribute to the change in the net position for the fiscal year. 

The fund financial statements follow and report additional and detailed Information about operations for 
major funds individually and non-major funds in the aggregate for governmental funds. A reconciliation is 
provided that converts the results of governmental fund accounting to the government-wide presentations. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund- This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Capital Projects Funds- Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

Debt Service Fund- The debt service fund is used to account for the resources accumulated and 
payments made for principal and interest on general long-term debt. 

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund- The gas tax special revenue fund is used to account for proceeds 
form a state gasoline tax. The use of these funds is restricted to expenditures related to construction, 
improvements, resurfacing, restoration, and rehabilitation for highways, roads, bridges and streets. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN.TING POLICIES: (continued) 

The city reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Sewer- The fund accounts for the revenues and costs related to the provision of sewer services in 
'the City. · 

Water - The fund accounts for the revenues and costs related to the provision of water and 
wastewater treatment services in the City. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 

Internal Service Fun - The fund accounts for the ;operations ofthe self-insured medical insurance 
plan provided to funds of the City on a cost reimb~rsement basis. 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation- Government-wide financial 
statement - The government-wide financial statements are reported usi1,1g the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liabilitY is incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange . 
transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value 
in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an.'accrual basis, revenue from 
property taxes associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so 
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to accrual 
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements- The governmental fund financial statements are reported using 
the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be availabl.e 
when they are collectible within 90 days after year-end. Sales taxes, gasoline. taxes, grants, donations, and 
interest revenue are all considered to be susceptible to accrual. Unearned revenue arises when assets are 
recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. All other revenue items are considered 
to be measurable and available. only when cash is received by the City. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expendit1,1res related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgements, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and 
amortization, are not recognized in governmental. funds .. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. :Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued) 

Under the terms of.grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by combination of specific cost~ 
reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are 
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the City's 
policy to first apply cost~reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block 
grants, and then by general revenues. 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements- Proprietary funds reused to account for operations that are (a) 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises- where the intent of the governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing 
body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non~operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenue~ and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non~operating revenues and expenses. · 

Cash and cash equivalents- Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short:-term investments with original maturities ofthree months or less from the date of acquisition. 

Property tax calendar- All ad valorem taxes levied by the state, county, and any municipality in Wilcox 
County are assessed by the Tax Assessor and collected by the Tax Assessor and collected by the Tax 
Collector of Clarke County. The Clarke County property tax calendar requires the Tax Assessor to assess 
and attach taxes as enforceable liens on property as of September 30 and taxes are due October l through 
December 31 of the following year. Property taxes that have not been paid by January I are considered 
delinquent. Tax collections received by the County Tax Collector are remitted to the City on a monthly 
basis. 

Receivables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current 
portion of inter.,.fund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund 
loans. All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." 

Accounts receivable in governmental funds consist of fees for public services rendered, reimbursable 
payments paid for the benefit of other governmental entities that are collected on a periodic basis, 
management expects to collect from balances outstanding at year~end. Based on management's 
assessments, it has concluded that realization loses on balances outstanding at year-end will be immaterial. 

. Receivables as of year-end are considered fully collectible and are recorded at net realizable value. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued) 

Accounts receivable in the proprietary funds consist of monthly billings to customers for services provided. 
The City extends credit to its customers, who are located primarily in Thomasville, Alabama. Trade 
accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances outstanding at 
year-end. Based on management's assessments of the credit history with customers having outstanding 
balances and current relationships with them, it has concluded that realization losses on balances 
outstanding at year-end will be immaterial; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts has been 
provided. 

Prepaid Items- Certain payments to vendors reflects costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government~wide and fund financial statements. 

Inventory - Governmental· funds inventories are reported as an expenditure when purchased rather than 
capitalized as an asset. The City has no significant inventories as of September 30, 20 15; therefore, none 
are reported on the statement of net position. 

Restricted Assets - Resources from federal and state grants, appropriations and shared taxes proceeds are 
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet. , 

Certain resources from federal and state grants set aside for improvements are classified as restricted assets 
on the statement of net position of the Thomasville because of their use is limited by their funding 
agreement. 

Capital Assets- Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government~wide financial statements. Such assets are recorded at historical cost 
or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. 



CITY OF THOMASVI\LLE, ALABAMA 
! 

NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

I 
I 
! . 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN~ING POLICIES: (continued) 
I 

The City has historical assets includi~g statuses and foJntains that are not capitalized, in accordance with 
established criteria. Specifically, the historical assets afe held for reasons other than financial gain. The 
assets are protected, Kept unencumbered, cared for and preserved, and are subject to a City policy requiring 
that sales proceeds from any historical assets be used to ~cquire similar assets. 

I 
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Decreases in net a$sets that relate to future periods are reported as 
deferred outflows of resources in a separate section of the governmen~-wide statement of net position and/or 
governmental funds' balance sheet. The City has two items that qualifies for reporting in this category. The 
deferred loss on refunding is reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred loss on 
refunded debt results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition 
price. Tl;tis amount is deferred and amortized over the shorted of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 

Compensated Absences- The City allows employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave up to certain 
limits for use in subsequent periods. Upon termination of employment, an employee receives payment of 
accumulated vacation hours up to a maximum of 360 hours at current wage' rates. Upon retirement, an 
,employee can receive payment of 50% of accumulated sick leave hours up to a maximum of 360 hours at 
current wage rates. All vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial 
statements up to certain limits for use in subsequent periods. A liability for these amounts is repmted in 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements. 

Long-, Term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the 
fund financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities; business type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and 
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bond$ 
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs other than prepaid 
insurance are expensed when incurred. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued) 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is rep01ted as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Lease Obligations _:_ Capital lease obligations are stated at the original fair market value of leased assets 
capitalized, less payments sirice the inception of the lease discounted at the implicit rate of interest in the 
lease. Also, in the year an asset is acquired by capital lease, the expenditure for the asset and offsetting 
amount ofthe financing source are reflected in the fund balances. Capital lease obligations of governmental 
activities inthe government-wide financial statements and the cost of assets so acquired are reflected in the 
accounts of those statements. Capital lease obligations of business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements and proprietary fund type financial statements and the cost of assets so acquired are 
reflected in the accounts ofthose funds and statements. 

Fund Balance - In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the City classifies government fund balance 
as follows: · · 

• Non-spendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in 
spendable form, or for legal or contractual requirements. This would include inventories, deposits 

·and prepaid items. 
• Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are 

externally imposed by providers, such as creditors, or amounts constrained due to constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed ~ includes fund balance amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes that 
are internally imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision making 
authority. Commitments may he changed by the government takihg the same action that imposed 
the constraint initially. Contractual obligations are included to the extent that existing resources in 
the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual obligations. Fund 
balance is committed by the City Council by ordinance. 

• Assigned - includes spendable fund balances amounts that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. This indtcates that resources in these 
funds are, at minimum, intended to be used for the purpose of that fun. The City Council, Mayor, 
Finance Director, or the ·city Clerk is authorized to assign amounts to a specific purpose. The 
authorization, which is established by the City Council., is pursuant to the policy of the City Council 
to delegate suchauthority. · 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued) 

• Unassigned - includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which has not been 
classified within the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund balance may also include· 
negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures exceeded amounts restricted, 
committed, or assigned for those specific proposes. 

The City considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. The City considers committed, then 
assigned amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts of 
unrestricted fund balance is available. . 

Pensions- The Employees' Retirement System of Alabama (the Plan) financial statements are prepared 
using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are 
recognized as revenues when earned, pursuant to the plan requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the term& of the plan. Expenses are recognized when the 
corresponding liability is incurred, regardless of when the payment ~s made. Investments are reported at 
fair value. Financial statements are prepared in accordance with requirements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Under these requirements, the Plan is considered a component unit 
of the State of Alabama and is included in the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Management Estimates and Assumptions - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
. accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could vary from estimates used. 

. . 

NOTE 2- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABlLITY: 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The budget is adopted annually at the beginning of each fiscal year 
for the general fund, gas tax special revenue fund, cawital projects fund, debt service fund, and judicial 
special reveriue fund. The council must approve transfers within an individual department only. Actual 
expenditures should not exceed appropriation in departments. · 

Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year unless expended or encumbered. Encumbered 
appropriations are carried forward. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end 
are reported as assigned fund balance and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities of the fund. 

Budgets for the above-mentioned funds are adopted on a basis other than accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) insofar as encumbrances are included with expenditures. 
Reconciliation of expenditures reported in accordance with GAAP and those presented in accordance with 
the non GAAP budgetary basis. · 



CITY OF THOlVIASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 3 -CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS,· ANp INVESTMENTS: 

Deposits- Custodial credit risk...:_ The City's inv~stment policy requires that bank deposits be 
Fully insured by the Federal· Deposit Insurance Corporation or be covered under the Security 
For Alabama Funds Enhancement (SAFE) Program. The SAFE program is a multiple 
Financial collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer according to State of Alabama statute. 

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the City's governmental activities for the year ended September 30, 2016 
Was as follows: ' 



City of"f.homasville, Alabama 

Notes to Financial Statements-Continued 

Changes in Capital Assets 
A summary of changes in governmental-type funds capital assets follows: 

Primary Government 
Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and improvements $ 6,628,377 $ $ $ 6,628,377 

'Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,628,377 6,628,377 

Other capital assets: 

Buildings and improv.ements 15,789,941 952,741 16,742,682 

Equipment 4,801,995 121,261 4,923,256 

Furniture and Fixtures 367,989 367,989 

Library Materials 615,590 615,590 

Total other capital assets at historical cost 21,575,515 1,074,002 22,649,517 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings and improvements (3,562,558) (393,493) {3,956,051) 

Equipment (3,892,210) {370,478) (4,262,688) 

Furniture and Fixtures (271,129) (26,261) (297,390) 

Library Materials (486,528) (44,211) (530,739) 

Total accumulated depreciation (8,212,425) (834,443) (9,046,868) 

Other capital assets, net 13,363,090 239,559 13,602,649 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 19,991,467 $ 239,559 $ $ 20,231,026 

Changes in Capital Assets 
A summary of changes in governmental-type funds capital assets follows: 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets. not being depreciated: 

Land and improvements $ . 1,098,634 $ $ $ 1,098,634 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,098,634 1,098,634 

Other capital assets; 

Water and sewer system 43,679,655 31,189 43,710,844 

Buildings and equipment 1,298,893 60,543 1,359,436 

Total other capital assets at historical cost 44,978,548 91,732 45;070,280 

Less accumlated depreciation for: 

Water and sewer system (6,774,223) (674,975) (7,449,198) 

Buildings and equipment. (515,637) (35,791) (551,428) 

Total accumulated depreciation (7,289,860) (710,766) (8,000,626) 

Other capita I assets, net 37,688,688 (619,034) 37,069,654 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 38,787,322 (619,034) 38,168,288 



City ofThomasville, Alabama 

Notes to Financial Statements- Continued 

The current year's depreciation expense has been charged to the various departments as follows: 

Governmental-type funds 

Administrative Department $ 325,419 

Police Department 165,687 

Parks Department 36,116 

Library Department 19,22.4 

Fire Department 77,682 

Street Department 34,072 

Sanitation Department 141,055 

Nutrition Department 5,451 

Court Department 1,363 

Ordinance Department 1,351 

Economic Development 2,044 

R.S.V.P. Department 1,044 

Bridge to Success Department 3,407 

!ndustrlal Development 17,628 

Golf Course 2,900 

Totals .$ 834,443 



City of Thomasville, Alabama 
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued 

Summary of General long-Term Activity Transactions 

Long-term liability Activity 

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, is as follows: 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending ·Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Governmental Activities: 
Bonds· and notes payable: 

General Obligation debt $ 13,515,000 $ $ 780,000 $ 12,735,000 $ 
capital leases 169,704 169,704 
Bank notes 3,381,414 $ 3,048,517 644,724 5,785,207 

Total bonds and notes payable $ 17,066,118 $ 3,048,517 
.... 2 •• 

$ 1,424,724 $ 18,689,911 $ 

Long-term Debt ' 

The City of Thomasville, Alabama currently has outstanding Series2009 General Obligation Secured Warrants in the 

amount of $6,425,000, Series 2011 General Obligation Refunding Warrants in the amount of $4,475,000 and Series 2013 

General Obligation Refunding and Capital Improvement Warrants :in the amount of $4,200,000. Thes~ warrants are general 

obligations of the City far which it has pledged its full faith and credit. These obligations are further secured 

as to payment by a pledge of the City's 4% Gross Receipts tax and ·as much of its general operating revenues as necessary 

after payment of its normal operating expenses. 

All of the bond indebenture agreements contain provision for early redemption at various premium rates. The City has 

defeased certain previous Bond issues by placing funds in irrevocable escrow accounts. These funds were invested in 

U.S. Treasury obligations that together with interest earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future 

payments of principal, interest and redemption premiums of the refunqed issues. As the City of Thomasville, Alabama 

has satisfied its obligations through consummation of the, refundl~g transactions described herein, these bonds are not 

included in the accompanying schedule ofthe City's outstanding long-term debt. 

One Year 

810,000 
169,704 
692,724 

1,672,428 



City of Thomasville, Alabama 

Notes to Financial Statements- Continued 

General Obligation of Bonds-

General Bonds have been issued on September 1, 2009 in the amount remaining of$ 4,630,000 

These Bond Series 2009 require debt service on a Monthly basis in the amount of$ 66,500. 

General Bonds have been issued on June 1, 2011 in the amount remaining of$ 4,345,000. 

These Bonds Series 2011 require debt service on a Monthly basis in the amount of $16,354. 

General Bonds have been issued on March 1, 2013 in the amount remaining of$ 3,760,000. 

These Bonds Series 2013 require debt service on a Monthly basis in the amount of$ 20,477. 

The following are Bank Notes from Capstone Bank : 

Loan number 4630004084 originally in the amount of$ 1,060,670 on August 25, 2014 with a remaining 

balance of$ 1,005,314 for September 30,2016. The interest rate is 3.95% and the Loan is for the Fire 

Department of the City. 

Loan number 4630003922 originally in the amount of$ 1,062,537 on February 28, 2014 with a 

remaining balance of$ 1,061,798 for September 30, 2016. The interest rate is 4.50% and the Loan is for 

the Hospital. 

Loan number 4630004114 originally in the amount of$ 250,000 on January 5, 2016 with a remaining 

balance of$ 200,270 for September 30, 2016. The interest rate is 3.95 %and the Loan is for the 

Industrial Development Board Credit Line. 

Loan number 4630004186 originally in the amount of$ 500,000 on June 6, 2016 with a remaining 

Balance of$ 500,000 for September 30, 2016. The interest rate is 4.50% and the Loan is for the Public 

Parks. 

Loan number 3330014915 originally in the amount of$ 300,000 on July 7, 2016 with a remaining 

balance of$ 300,000 for September 30, 2016. The interest is 3.95% and the loan is for the Industrial 

Development Board. 

The following are Bank Notes from pt U S Bank : 

Loan number 850001915 originally in the amount of$ 501,030 on August 31, 2010 with a remaining 

balance of$ 329,614 for September 30, 2016. The interest is 4.50% and the loan is for Lakeside Steel f 
Dozier Gibson property. 



Continued- Bank Loans from 1st US Bank: 

Loan number 860004590 originally in the amount of$ 1,334,369 on July 6, 2016 with a remaining 

balance of$ 1,325,001 for September 30, 2016. The interest is 3.95% and the loan is for Industrial 

Development Board. 

Loan number 850000215 originally in the amount of$ 500,065 on May 31, 2011 with a remaining 

balance of$ 329,080 for September 30, 2016. The interest is 4.50% and the loan is for a Spec Building. 

Loan number 850003516 originally in the amount of$ 370,000 on March 25, 2011 with a remaining 

balance of$ 302,981 for September 30, 2016. The interest is 4.50% and the loan is for a Simplex 

Building. 

The following is a Loan with Regions Bank of Loan number 2180123 originally in the amount of 

$ 439,214 on February 18, 2011 with a remaining balance of$ 439,214 for September 30, 2016. 

The interest is 4.96% and the loan is for Lakeside Steel on Linden Lumber. 

The following is a Loan with Alabama Tom Bigbee Regional Commission ( ATRC) originally in the amount 

of $ 250,000 on December 21, 2011 with a remaining balance of$ 200,000 for September 30, 2016. The 

Interest is 4.75% and the loan is for the Hospital. 

The following is a Loan with US Department of Agriculture originally in the amount of$ 900,850 

on April30, 2009 with a remaining balance of$ 812,017 for September 30,2016. The Interest is 

4.25 %for Construction purposes. 

Capitalized Lease Payments 

General Obligation Lease payments for City use vehicles with various purchase dates 

in the original amount of$ 169,704 bearing interest at the various rates of 4.25% to 5.20% 

per annum. Payable in 36 monthly installments of$ 14,142 including interest accrued. 

Water and Sewer Annual Debt Service includes Obligation Bonds-

General Bonds have been issued on July 1, 2010 in the amount remaining of 

$ 2,970,000. These Bond Series 2010 have an interest rate ranging from 3.10% to 4.625 %. 

General Bonds have been issued on January 1, 2014 Series A- in the amount remaining 

of$ 6,118,000. These Bonds Series 2014 have an interest rate at 3.50 %. The original 

balance on January 1,2014 W!JS $ 6,369,000. 

General Bonds have been issued on January 1, 2014 Series B - in the amount remaining 

of$ 3,842,000. These Bonds Series 2014 have an interest rate at 3.50%. The original 

balance on January 1,2014 was$ 4,000,000. 



( Continued) -Water and Sewer Annual Debt Service includes Obligation Bonds 

General Bonds have been issued on January 1, 2014 SeriesC- in the amount remaining 

of$ 3,359,000. These Bonds Series 2014 have an interest rate at 3.375 %. The original 

balance on January 1,2014 was$ 3,500,000. 



City of 'Thomasville, Alabama 
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CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING AlliD CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT WARRANTS 

SERIES 2009 DATED SEPTEMBER 1, 2009 

PRINCIPAL ANNUAL DEBT 

DATES MATURITIES INTEREST SERVICE 

~/15/2017 635,000 87,805 722,805 
8/15/2017 75,105 75,105 
2/15/2018 645,000 75,105 720,105 
8/15/2018 63,818 63,818 
2/15/2019 670,000 63,818 733,818 
8/15/2019 51,674 51,674 
2/15/2020 670,000 51,674 721,674 
8/15/2020 39,111 39,111 

2/15/2021 670,000 39,111 709,111 

8/15/2021 26,381 26,381 

2/15/2022 670,000 26,381 696,381 

8/15/2022 13,400 13,400 

2/15/2023 670,000 13,400 683,400 

$ 4,630,000 $ 626,783 $ 5,256,783 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT WARRANTS 

SERIES 2011 DATED JUNE 1, 2011 

PRINCIPAL ANNUAL DEBT 

DATES MATURITIES INTEREST SERVICE 

2/15/2017 30,000 83,376 113,376 
8/15/2017 ' 82,870 82,870 

2/15/2018 35,000 82,870 117,870 

8/15/2018 82,279 82,279 
'2/15/2019 35,000 82,279 117,279 

8/15/2019 81,689 81,689 
2/15/2020 40,000 81,689 121,689 
8/15/2020 81,014 81,014 
2/15/2021 40,000 81,014 121,014 
8/15/2021 80,339 80,339 
2/15/2022 130,000 80,339 210,339 
8/15/2022 78,064 78,064 
2/15/2023 150,000 78;064 228,064 
8/15/2023 75,439 75,439 
2/15/2024 855,000 75,439 930,439 
8/15/2024 59,835 59,835 
2/15/2025 890,000 59,835 949,835 
8/15/2025 42,925 42,925 

2/15/2026 930,000 42,925 972,925 
8/15/2026 24,325 24,325 

2/15/2027 960,000 24,325 984,325 
8/15/2027 5,125 5,125 
2/15/2028 250,000 5,125 255,125 

' 4,345,000 $ 1,471,183 $ 5,816,183 



·City of Thomasville, Alabama 
Notes to Financial Statements - Cpntinued 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT WARRANTS 

SERIES 2013 DATED MARCH 1,2013 

INTEREST PRINCIPAL ANNUAL DEBT 
DATES RATE MATURITIES INTEREST SERVICE 

2/15/2017 2.000% 145,000 50,364 195,364 
8/15/2017 50,364 50,364 
2/15/2018 1.400% 145,000 49,349 194,349 
8/15/2018 49,349 49,349 
2/15/2019 1.400% 145,000 48,207 193,207 

8/15/2019 48,207 '48,207 

2/15/2020 1.750% 150,000 46,916 196,916 

8/15/2020 46,916 46,916 
2/15/2021 1.750% 155,000 45,437 200,437 

8/15/2021 45,437 45,437 

2/15/2022 2.125% 155,000 43,790 198,790 
8/15/2022 43;790 43,790 
2/15/2023 2.125% 155,000 42,036 197,036 
8/15/2023 42,036 42,036 
2/15/2024 2.400% 165,000 40,116 205,116 
8/15/2024 40,116 40,116 
2/15/2025 2.400% 165,000 38,054 203,054 

8/15/2025 38,054 38,054 

2/15/2026 2.600% 165,000 35,909 200,909 

8/15/2026 35,909 35,909 
2/15/2027 2.600% 175,000 33,633 208,633 
8/15/2027 33,633 33,633 
2/15/2028 ' 2.750% 180,000 31,193 211,193 
8/15/2028 31,193 31,193 

2/15/2029 2.750% 180,000 28,650 208,650 
8/15/2029 28,650 28,650 
2/15/2030 2.900% 185,000 26,004 211,004 
8/15/2030 26,004 26,004 
2/15/2031 2.900% 195,000 23,200 218,200 
8/15/2031 23,200 23,200 
2/15/2032 3.000% 195,000 20,275 215,275 
8/15/2032 20,275 20,275 
2/15/2033 3.000% 205,000 17,147 222,147 
8/15/2033 17,147 17,147 
2/15/2034 3.250% 215,000 13,734 228,734 
8/15/2034 13,734 13,734 
2/15/2035 3.250% 220,000 10,062 230,062 
8/15/2035 10,062 10,062 
2/15/2036 3.250% 225,000 6,169 231,169 
8/15/2036 6,169 6,169 
2/15/2037 3.500% 240,000 2,100 242,100 
8/15/2037 2,100 2,100 

$ 3,760,000 $ 1,304,688 $ 5,064,688 



City of Thomasvile, Alabama 
Notes to Financial Statements- Continued 

Debt Obligation Principal and Interest Schedule 
-~ ~~-~-~ 

FIRST CAPSTONE CAPSTONE .CAPSTONE 
SERIES SERIES SERIES USDA UNITED LOAN LOAN LOAN CAPITILIZED 
2009 2011 2013 LOAN SECURITY (4) General IDB Health LEASES TOTAL 

Authority 

-9/30/2017 797,910 196,246 245,728 55,108 273,552 180,531 200,270 1,061,798 169,704 3,180,847 
9/30/2018 783,923 200,149. 243,698 55,173 273,552 180,531 1,737,026 
9/30/2019 785,491 198,968 241,414 55,195 273,552 180,531 1,735,151 
9/30/2020 7<?0,785 202,702 243,832 55,175 273,552 180,531 1,716,577 
9/30/2021 735,493 201,353 245,874 55,113 273,552• 180,531 1,691,916 
9/30/2022. 709,781 288,403 242,580 . 55,008 273,552 180,531 1,749,855 
9/30/2023 683,400 303,503 239,072 54,860 152,976 180,531 1,614,342 
9/30/2024 990,274 245,232 55,670 152,976 180,531 1,624,683 
9/30/2025 992,760 241,108 55,395 152,976 180,531 1,622,770 
9/30/2026 997,250 236,818 55,078 152,976 180,531 1,622,653 -
9/30/2027 989,450 242,266 54,718 152,976 1,439,410 
9/30/2028 255,125 242,386 55,315 118,500 671,326 
9/30/2029 237,300 54,828 118,500 410,628 
9/30/2030 237,008 55,298 118,500 410,806 
9/30/2031 241,:400 .. _?~,-~~3- . lJ!l,~OQ . 415,583 

. 9/30/2632. . 235,550 54,983 290,533 
9/30/2033 239,294 55,240 294,534 
9/30/2034 242,468 55,413 297,881 
9/30/2035 240,124 55,500 295,624 
9/30/2036 237,336 55,503 292,839 
9/30/2037 244,200 55,420 299,620 
9/30/2038 55,253 55,253 

TOTALS $ 5,256,783 $ 5,816,183 $ 5,064,688 $ 1,214,929 $2,880,192 $ 1,805,310 $ 200,270 $ 1,061,798 $ 169,704 $ 23,469,857 
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CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER30, 2016 

NOTE 5- INTERFUND BALANCES: 

lnterfund transactions are generally used to meet cash demands necessary to pay operating Expenditures. 
These amounts should be repaid during the next fiscal year. Amounts reported in the fund financial 
statements as interfund receivables and payables are eliminated in the Entity-wide governmental column of 
the statement of net assets, except for the net residual amounts due between govemmental and business­
type activities, which are presented as internal balances. . 

The composition of interfund receivables and payables as of September 30, 20 16 consists of the following: 
' . . . ··- . .. .. . . 

RECEIVABLE FUND PAYABLE FUND AMOUNT 

General Fund Industrial Development Board $ 408,000 
General Fund Thomasville Health Authority 121,000 

General Fund Capital Projects Fund 205,000 
Water & Sewer Board General Fund 850,000 
Capital Improvements - W & S General Fund 39,000 
Tobacco Tax Fund General Fund 21,000 

$ 1,644,000 



NOTE 6- PENSION PLAN: 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Benefits Provided- State law establishes retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits and 
any ad hoc increase in postretirement benefits for the ERS. Benefits for ERS members vest after ten years 
of creditable service: State employees who retire after age 60 (52 for State Police) with ten years or more 
of creditable service or with 25 years of service (regardless of age) are entitled to annual retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life. Local employees who retire after age 60 with ten years or more of creditable 
service or with 25 or 30 years of service (regardless of age), depending on the particular entity's election, 
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. Service and disability retirement 
benefits are based on a guaranteed minimum or a formula method, with the member receiving payment 
under the method that yields the highest monthly benefit. Under the formula method, members of the ERS 
(except State Police) are allowed 2.0125% of their average final compensation (highest three of the last ten 
years) for each year of service. State Police are allowed 2.8750% for each year of State Police service in 
computing the formula method. 

Act 377 of the Legislature of2012 established a new tier of benefits (Tier 2) for members hired on or after 
January 1, 2013. Tier 2 ERS members are eligible for retirement after age 62 (56 for State Police) with ten 
years or more of creditab.Ie service and are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for 
life. Service and disability retirement benefits are based on a guaranteed minimum or a formula method, 
with the member receiving payment under the method that yields the highest monthly benefit. Under the 
formula method, Tier 2 member of the ERS (except State Police) are allowed 1.65% of their average final 
compensation (highest five ofthe last ten years)for each year of service. State Police are allowed 2.3750% 
for each year of state police service in computing the formula 'method. 

Members are eligible for disability retirement if they have ten years of credible service, are currently in­
service, and determined by the RSA Medical Board to be permanently incapacitated from further 
performance of duty. Preretirement death benefits are calculated and paid to the beneficiary on the 
member's age, service credit, employment status, and eligibility for retirement. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 6 -PENSION PLAN: (continued) 

The ERS serves approximately 846 local participating employers. These participating employers include 
287 cities, 65 counties, and 494 other public entities. The ERS membership includes approximately 83,874 
participants. As of September 3Q, 2016, membership consists of: 

Contributions- Covered members of the ERS contributed 5.00% ofearnable compensation to the eRs as 
required by statute until September 30, 2011. From October 1, 2011, to September 30, 2012, covered 
members of the ERS were required by statute to contribute 7.25% of earnable compensation. Effective 
October 1,2011, covered members of the ERS are required by statute to contribute 7.50% of earnable 
compensation. Certified law enforcement, correctional officers, and firefighters of the ERS contributed 
6.00% of earnable compensation as required by statute until September 30, 2011. From October 1, 2012, 
certified law enforcement, correctional· officers, and firefighters of the ERS are required by statute to 
contribute 8.50% of eamable compensation. State Police of the ERS contribute 10.00% of earnable 
compensation. ERS local participating employers are not required by statute to increase contribution rates 
for their members. 

Tier 2 covered members of the ERS contribute 6.00% of earnable compensation to the ERS as required by 
statute. Tier 2 certified law enforcement, correctional officers, and firefighters of the ERS are required by 
statute to contribute 7.00% of earnable compensation. Tier 2 State Police members of the ERS contribute 
10.00% of earnable compensation. These contributions rates are the same for Tier 2 covered members of 
ERS local participating employers. 

The ERS establishes rates based upon an actuarially determined rate recommended by an independent 
actuary. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with additional amounts to finance any unfunded accrued liability, 
the pre-retirement death benefit, and administrative expenses ofthe Plan. For the year ended September 30, 
2016, the City's active employee contribution rate was 5.70% of covered employee payroll, and the City's 
average contribution rate to fund the normal and accrued liability costs was 8.91% of covered employee 
payroll. 

The City's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended September 30, 2015 was ·9.18% of 
pensionable pay for Tier 1 employees, and 6.88% of pensionable pay for Tier 2 employees. These required 
contribution rates are based upon the actuarial valuation dated September 30, 2013, a percent of annual 
pensionable payroll, and actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with member 
contribution, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by members during the year. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 6 -PENSION PLAN: (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions- The total pension liability in the September 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement. 

Mortality rates for ERS were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table Projected with Scale AA to 
2015 set forward three years for male and two years for females. The rates of morality for the period after 
disability retirement are according to the sex distinct RP-2000 Disability Mortality Table. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the September 30, 2013 valuations were based on the results of an 
investigation of the economic and demographic experience for the ERS based upon participant data as of 
September 30, 2010. The Board of Control accepted and approved these changes on January 27, 2012, 
which became effective at the beginning of fiscal year 2012. 

The long-term expected.rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of Jxpected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) a(e developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate .of return by weighing the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage ~nd by adding expected inflation. The target asset 
allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates o~ ret~rn for each major asset class are as follows: 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure 1'he total pension liability was the long-term rate of 
return, 8.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate and that the employer 
contributions will be made in accordance with the fm~ding policy adopted by the ERS Board of Control. 
Based on those assumptions, components of the pensi~n plan's fiduciary net position were projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payment~ of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments wa~ applied to all periods of projected benefit payments 

I . 
to determine the total pension liability. · 

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following table presents the 
City's net pension liability calculated using the di~count rate of 8.00%, as well as what the City's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would ~e if it were calculated using a discount rate that is ]­
percentage point lower (7.00%) or ]-percentage point pigher (9.00%) than the current rate: 

Pension plan fiduciary net position- Detailed inform~tion about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued RSA Comprehensi~e Annual Report for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2015. The supporting actuarial information is inclhded in the GASB Statement No. 68 Report for the 
ERS prepared as of September 30, 2015. The auditdr's report dated June 3, 2016 on the Schedule of 
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position by Employer and abcompanying notes is also available. The additional 
financial and actuarial information is available at :w .. YVJ..r$.J!:~!J.,gqy. · 

! 
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CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAIJ STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

.NOTE 6- PENSION PLAN: (continued) 

For the year ended September 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expenses of $1,909,948. At September 
30, 2016, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension of the following sources: 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows for employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date will . 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2016. Amounts 
reported as deferred in flows of resources to pensions will be recognized in pension expense. 

NOTE 7- POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS: 

The City of Thomasville administers a single-employer defined benefit (OPEB) plan for the employees of 
the City. From an accrual accounting perspective, the cost of post-employment healthcare benefits, like the 
cost of pension benefits, should be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than in the 
future years when it will be paid. The City recognizes the cost of post-employment health care in the year 
when employee services are received, reports the accumulated liability from prior years, and provides 
information useful in assessing potential demands on the City's future cash flows. The recognition of the 
liability accumulated from prior years will be phased in over 30 years, commencing with the 2009 liability. 

Plan Description - The City of Thomasville, Alabama's medical benefits are provided through a 
comprehensive medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. 

The employees are covered by the Retirement System of Alabama and must meet the eligibility provisions 
adopted by resolution to receive retiree medical benefits. The earliest retirement eligibility provisions are 
as follows: 25 years of service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 y·ears of service (called "Tier I members). 
Employees hired on and after January 1, 2013 (called "Tier II" members) are eligible to retire only after 
attainment of age 62 or later completion of 10 years of service. Benefit provisions and contribution 
requirement of the plan may be established or amended by the Council. 

Contribution Rates - Employees do not contribute to their post-employment benefits costs until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates are contained 
in the official plan documents. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 7- POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS: (continued) 

Funding Policy- Until fiscal year ended September 30,2008, the City ofThomasville, Alabama recognized 
the cost of_ providing post-employment medical benefits (the City of Thomasville's portion of the retiree 
medical benefit premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost 
of the post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City's funding policy is not to fund the 
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) of the employer except to the extent of the current year's retiree 
funding costs. 

In fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, the City of Thomasville, Alabama's portion of health care funding 
cost for retired employees totaled $ ·1, 191,171. These amounts were applied toward the net OPEB obligation 
as shown in the table below. 

Annual Required Contribution- The City of Thomasville's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The ARC is the sum of the Normal Cost plus 
the contribution to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (VAAL). A level dollar, open 
amortization period of 30 years, (the maximum amortization period allowed by GASB 45) has been used 
for the post-employment benefits. The total ARC for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2015 is $ 240,082 
as set forth below: 

Funded Status and Funding Progress- As of September 20, 20 16, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits 
was $ 1,909,948 all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) was$ 8,662,511 and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial liability to the covered payroll 
was 28.12% as presented in the following table: 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions- Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. The actuarial valuation for 
post-employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions regarding (I) turnover rate; (2) retirement 
rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5discount rate (investment return assumption); and 
(6) the period to which the costs apply (past, cuiTent, or future years of service by employees). Actuarially 
determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by the City and its employee plan members) at the time of the valuation and 
on the pattern of sharing costs between the City of Thomasville, Alabama and its plan members to that 
point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the 
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the City 
and plan members in the future. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial calculations. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 7- POST~EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS: (continued) 

The following significant assumptions were made: . 

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce shorHerm 
volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. -

Actuarial Cost Method -The ARC is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The 
employer portion of the cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined by projecting the 
current cost levels using the health care cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount to the valuation 
date using the other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment return assumption 
(discount rate), mortality, and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets - There are not any plan assets. It is anticipated that in future valuations, 
should funding take place, a smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board ASOP 6, as 
provided in paragraph number 125 ofGASB Statement 45 would be used. 

Turnover Rate- An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience has been used. The rates, when 
applied to the active employee census, produce a composite average annual turnover of approximately 9%. 
It has further been assumed that 10% of retirees decline coverage because of the substantial retiree 
contribution required. 

Post~Employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements- Based on past experience, it has been assumed 
that entitlement to benefits will commence immediately upon retiree coverage eligibility, as described under 
"Plan Description". In addition, "Tier II" retirement plan members (those hired on and after January 1, 
2013) would not be eligible to retire before age 62. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual , 
retirement. 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate) - GASB Statement 45 states that the investment return 
assumption should be the estimated long-term investment yield on the investments that are expected to be 
used to finance the payment of benefits (that is, for a plan which is funded). Based on the assumption that 
the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annual investment return has been used in this valuation. 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate- The expected rate of increase in medical cost is .based on a graded schedule 
beginning with 8% annually, down to an ultimate aimual rate of 5.0% for ten years out and later. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Balance at September 30, 2014 
Change for the year: 

Service Cost 
Interest 
Difference between expected & actual 
expenence 
Contributions - Employer 
Contributions - Employee 
Net investment income 
Benefits payments, including refunds 
of employee contributions 
Transfer amount employers 

Net Change 

Balance at September 30,2015 

City1s Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

September 30, 2016 

TOTAL 
PENSION 

LIABILITY 

8,235,983 

223,632 
641,549 

(5,413) 

(433,240) 

498,302 

8,662,511 

1.00% 
DECREASE 

-7.00% 

2,927,353 

PLAN 
FIDUCIARY 

NET POSITION 

6,849,765 

240,082 
136,709 
80,211 

(433,240) 
·(120,964) 

97,202 

. 6,752,563 

CURRENT 
RATE 
8.00% 

190,948 

NET 
PENSION 

LIABILITY 

1,386,218 

223,632 
641,549 

(5,413) 
(240,082) 
(136,709) 

(80,211) 

(120,964) 
523,730 

1,909,948 

1.00% 
INCREASE 

9.00% 

1,044,740 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 7- POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS: (continued) 

Mortality Rate- The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAF) table, projected to 2002, based on flex blend 
of 50% of the .unloaded male mortality rates and 50% of the unloaded female mortality rates, is used. This 
is a recently published mortality table which has been used in determining the value of accrued benefits in 
defined benefit pension plans. Projected future mortality improvement has not been used since it is our 
opinion that this table contains sufficiently conservative margin for the population involved in this 
valuation. 

Method of Determining value of Benefits- The value of benefits has been assumed to be the portion of the 
premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree and has been used as 
the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. The retiree pas for 100% 
of the cost of the medical insurance for the retiree and dependents (except for the incentive retirees), but it 
is based on the active/retiree blended rate. Therefore, there is an implicit employer subsidy since a portion 
of the active/retired blended rate is attributable to the retiree coverage. Since use of unblended rates is 
required by GASB 45 for valuation purposes, we have estimated the unblended retiree total rate before age 
65 to be 130% of the blended rate. The retiree, if any. Retiree coverage ceases at age 65. 

Inflation Rate - Incl.uded in both the Investment Return Assumption and the Healthcare Cost Trend rates 
above is an implicit inflation assumption of 2.50% annually. 

Projected Salary Increases - This assumption is not applicable since neither the benefit structure nor the 
valuation methodology involves salary. 

Post-Retirement Benefit Increases - The plan benefit provisions in effect for retirees as of the valuation 
date have been used and it has been assumed for valuation purposes that there will not be any changes in 
the future. 

NOTE 8 -CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: 

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes which are subject to review and audit 
by the grantor agencies. Such audits could produce requests for reimbursements to the grantor agencies due 
to the disallowance of expenditures pursuant to the terms of the grant. It is the opinion of the City that such 
disallowances, if any, would not be material. 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determinable, in .the opinion of the City's council, the resolution of these matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial condition ofthe City. 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

NOTE 8- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) . 

Employees' Medical Insurance Fund- The City maintains the employees' medical insurance fund (an 
internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Liabilities of the fund are report 
when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The result of the 
process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount, as it depends on many complex factors. The 
estimate of the claims liability includes amounts for incremental claim adjustments related to specific 
claims and other claim adjustments regardless of whether they are allocated to specific claims. Estimated 
recoveries are another component of the claims liability estimate. An excess coverage insurance. policy 
covers individual claims in excess of $100,000. 

NOTE 9 ~SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There is one event has occurred subsequent to the September 30, 2016 have been discovered that could 
have an effect on the accompanying financial statements. There were additional loans acquired after the 
date of September 30, 2016. Yet, the current Balance sheet of Debt levels has not changed for the date of 
September 30, 2016. For more additional information, please contact the City Clerk for details on these 
loans. 

NOTE 10- CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE:. 

In fiscal year 2016, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to 
the Measurement Date, which improves accounting and financial Reporting by state and local 
Governments for pensions. 

The implementation of Statement No.68 resulted in the restatement of the beginning net 
Position of the governmental and business~type activities in the government-wide financial 
Statements: 
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To the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Thomasville, Alabama 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about wheth~r City of Thomasville's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 

· under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use Of management, others 
within the entity, and federal awardingagencies and pass-through entities and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

~ J J~ A ~·-1,7, ... ..:;>e..,. v.'<:JJ_,_, ,::t:Nc_., 

Hollon Accounting Services, Inc. 
February 3, 2017 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, AlABAMA 

COMBINING BAlANCE SHEET- All SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

GASOLINE CIGARffiE 

ASSETS TAX TAX 

Cash $ 62,098 $ 6,906 

lnterfund Receivable $ 100,000 $ -
TOTAl ASSETS $ 162,098 $ 6,906 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAlANCE 

lnterfund Payable - 53,500 

Compensated Absences 

Due to General Fund 

Due to Proprietary Fund 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ - $ 53,500 

Fund Balance 162,098 (46,594) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 162,098 $ 6,906 

FIRE 

DEPARTMENT TOTAL 

$ 129,102 $ 198,106 

$ 100,000 

·$ 129,102 $ 298,106 

$ 53,500 

"$ - $ 53,500 

129,102 244,606 

$ 129,102 $ 298,106 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

. COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

GASOLINE CIGARETTE FIRE 
REVENUES TAX TAX DEPARTMENT TOTAL -

Intergovernmental $ - $ 30,369 $ - $ 30,369 

Taxes 72,453 - 72,453 

Interest 80 - 116 196 

.Donations 

Recreation 108,426 - 108,426 

Total Revenues 72,533 138,795 116 211,444 

EXPENDITURES 

General Government 

Public Safety 68,891 68,891 
Highways and Streets 130,000 - 130,000 

Culture and Recreation - 85,062 - 85,062 

Capital Outlay - 30,369 25,964 56,333 
Debt Service: 

Principal 

Interest 

Total Expenditures 130,000 115,431 94,855 340,286 

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (57,547) 23,364 (94,739) (128,922) 

Other Sources: 

Donations, Grants and Interest Income 97,798 97,798 

Proceeds from Long-term Borrowing 

Sale of Property 30,000 30,000 
Transfers Other Funds- Net 

Excess Revenues and Other Sources Over 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (57,547) 23,364 33,059 (1,124) 

Fund Balance, October 1 219,645 (69,958) 96,043 245,730 
-

Fund Balance, September 30 $ 162,098 $ (46,594) $ 129,102 $ 244,606 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 
September 30,2016 

Series 2007 Series 2009 Series 2011 Series 2013 
BOND BOND BOND BOND 
FUND FUND FUND FUND TOTALS 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 4 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $ 4 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 

Fund Balance - Reserved 
For Debt Service 1 1 1 1 4 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCE $ $ $ $ $ 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Series 2009 Series 2011 Series 2013 

BOND FUND BOND FUND BOND FUND 
REVENUE 

Interest Earned $ - $ - $ -

<PENDITURES 

. Principal Retirement 610,000 35,000 135,000 
Interest 184,760 167;103 103,092 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 794,760 202,103 --· 238,092 

Excess Revenues Over 

(Under) Expenditures 0 0 0 
-

Other Sources and {Uses): 

Series 2013 G.O. Refunding Bond Warrants 

Original Issue Discount 

Underwriter's Discount 

Bond Issue Cost 

Accrued Interest 

Transfer from General Fund 808,741 202,802 240,792 
lnterfund Transfer 

Excess Revenues and Other Sources 

(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 13,981 699 2,700 

Fund Balance, October 1 1 1 1 

Fund Balance, September 30 $ 13,982 $ 700 $ 2,701 

TOTALS 

$ 
-

780,000 

454,955 

1,234,955 

0 

1,252,335 

17,380 

1 

$ 17,381 



ASSETS 

Cash 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 

lnterfund Payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 

BALANCE 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

LAKESIDE INDUSTRIAL PARK 

STEEL PROJECTS 

$ - $ 20,138 

- 20,138 

35,000 205,000 

35,000 205,000 

(35,000) (184,862) 

$ - $ 20,138 

TOTALS 

$ 20,138 

20,138 

240,000 

240,000 

(219,862) 

$ 20,138 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

LAKESIDE INDUSTRIAL PARK 

STEEL PROJECT TOTALS 

REVENUES: 

TOTAL REVENUES $ $ $ 

Expenditures: 

Capital Outlay 49,978 511,867 561,845 

Other Expenditures 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 49,978 511,867 561,845 

Excess Revenues Over Expenditures (49,978) (511,867) (561,845) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

CDBG Grants and Contributions 307,949 307,949 

Transfer from lndustial Development Bd. 

Transfer from Governmental Funds 205,000 205,000 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES( USES) 512,949 512,949 

Excess of Revenues and Other 
Sources Over (Under) Expenditure 

and Other Uses (49,978) 1,082 (48,896) 

FUND BALANCE- OCTOBER 1 49,978 19,056 69,034 

FUND BALANCE- SEPTEMBER 30 $ $ 20,138 $ 20,138 



ASSETS 

Cash-

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 

Accrued Interest 

Loans Payable 

Compensated Absences 

Due to Proprietary Fund 

Due to Primary Government 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 

BALANCE 

CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

COMPONENT UNITS 

SEPtEMBER 30, 2016 

INDUSTRIAL THOMASVILLE 

DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC 

BOARD LIBRARY 

$ 4,727 $ 16,912 

- -
- -

230,000 -
1,927,298 -

2,157,298 -

(2;152,571} 16,912 

$ 4,727 $ 16,912 

THOMASVILLE THOMASVILLE 

HEALTH CHAMBER OF 

AUTHORITY COMMERCE TOTALS 

$ 6,279 $ 26,053 $ 53,971 

4,364 - 4,364 

1,262,068 - 1,262,068 

- - 230,000 

570,500 - 2,497,798 

1,836,932 - 3,994,230 

(1,830,653) 26,053 __ (3,940,259) 

$ 6,279 $ 26,053 $ 53,971 



CITY OF THOMASVILLE, AlABAMA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BAlANCE 

COMPONENT UNITS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

INDUSTRIAL THOMASVILLE THOMASVILLE THOMASVILLE 
DEVELOPMENT PUBLIC HEALTH CHAMBER OF 

BOARD LIBRARY AUTHORITY COMMERCE TOTALS 
REVENUES: . 

Fees, Fines and Miscellaneous $ 63,516 $ 1,000 $ - $ 23,084 $ 87,600 
TOTAL REVENUES 63,516 1;ooo 23,084 $ 87,600 

EXPENDITURES: 

Employee Salaries and Expenses - 151,185 - 57,919 209,104 
Programs/Incentives 30,466 17,728 48,194 
Materials, Miscellaneous, Repairs and Utilities 185,079 16,754 - - 201,833 
Profes51ona I Services 27,139 3,100 617 30,856 
Capital Outlay 83,880 8,563 - 92,443 
Debt Service 

Principal 146,826 146,826 

.Interest 128,983 - 47,878 176,861 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 571,907 210,068 48,495 75,647 906,117 

Revenues Under Expenditures (508,391) (209,068) (48,495) (52,563) (818,517) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Donations, Grants and Interest Income 81,766 4,000 - 10 85,776 

.Proceeds from Long-Term Borrowing 

Sale of Property 
Transfers (to) from Other Funds 408,000 210,068 121,000 57,919 796,987 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 489,766 214,068 121,000 57,929 882,763 

Revenues and Other Sources (Under) Expenditures 

and Other Uses (18,625) 5,000 (65,495) 5,366 (73,754) 

FUND BAlANCE (DEFICIT), OCTOBER 1 (2,133,946) 11,912 (1,765,158) 20,687 $ (3,866,505) 

P.rior Period Adjustment 
FUND BAlANCE (DEFICIT), SEPTEMBER 30 $ (2,152,571) $ 16,912 $ (1,830,653) $ 26,053 $ (3,940,259) 



City of Thomasville, Alabama 
Notes to Financial Statements - Continued 

State Grant Awards for this'Year 

A total of four grants were awarded this year to the City of Thomasville, Alabama. 

Each grant has a specific cause to address for Improvement for the City. 

City of Thomasville, Alabama . 
Notes to Financial Statements-Continued 

Agency 

State of Alabama, SACP No. STPTE-TE09(982) $ 

Received 
at Audit date 
for the fiscal 

Year 

1,074,002 



SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS AND SCHEDULES 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Thomasville, Alabama 

Management of City of Thomasville, Alabama is responsible for establishing and 
· maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning 
and performing our audit, we considered City of Thomasville,. Alabama's internal · 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion. on compliance and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular Q-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City 
of Thomasville, Alabama's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation 
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncomplic:mce with a t:)rpe of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we considered to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City 
Council, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass through 
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 

. specified parties. 

? J. ~~ A C-<-c th"' -t'Nd .5~t'--r V•' c..P--V I .:z::i..t (~' 
Hollon Accounting Services, Inc. 
February 31 2017 
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CITY OF THOMASVILLE, ALABAMA 
INSURANCE COVERAGE 

Fiscal Year ended September 30,2016 

INSURANCE POLICIES 

Enfored by: Alabama Municipal Insurance Corporation 

By Agency of : 

West Alabama lns\jrance Agency 

P 0 Box 36784, Thomasville, AL. 36784 

All policies Expire November 15, 2017 

The Water Works and Sewer Board of City ofThomasville, Alabama insurance 

coverage is included in a blanket policy coveringthe City of Thomasville's Governmental 

Funds capital assets and liabilities. The City of Thomasville is the name insured on all 

policies. The following schedule is a breakdown on the amounts insured for the 

Water Works and Sewer Board. 

Coverage Amount 

Item of Coverage Buildings I Contents /PIO Deductible 

Flood Coverage Building and Personal Property $ 100,000 
Occurrence Limit $ 1,000,000 
Aggregate Limit $1,000,000 
Category Limit $1,000,000 

EarthQuake Coverage Building and Personal Property $ 100,000 
Occurrence Limit $ 1,000,000 

Aggregate Limit $1,000,000 
Category Limit $1,000,000 

Contractors Equipment Cumulative Total of$ 1,000,000 $ 1,000 
(Assigned Values) each item 

Electronic Data Hardware Cumulative Total .of$ 350,000 $ 1,000 
(Assigned Values ) each item 

Cameras Cumulative Total of$ 50,000 $ 1,000 
(Assigned Values ) each item 

Emergency Equipment Cumulative Total of$ 310,000 $ 1,000 
of Patrol Vehicles ( Assigned Values ) each item 
and other Instruments 

Fire Equipment Cumulative Total of$ 100,000 $ 1,000 
(Assigned Values ) each item 

Signs Cumulative Total of$ 150,000 $ 1,000 
( Assigned Values ) each item 

Physical Buildings, Buildings I Contents I PIO 
Equipment and Coverage up to$ 1&,056,426 for $ 2,500 
Improvements to Property Buildings each item 

Coverage up to$ 5,067,435 for $ 2,500 
Contents each item 
Coverage up to$ 27,791,620 for .$ 2,500 
PIO each item 

( Assigned Values ) 



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 



Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of Auditors Report Issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Reportable condition(s) identified that are not 

consideredto be material weakness(es)? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Reportable condition(s) identified that are not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? 

Type of Auditor's Report Issued on compliance for 

major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 

in accordance with section SlO(a) of Circular A-133? 

____ yes 

____ yes 

____ yes 

____ yes 

____ yes 

____ yes 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs 

Auditee qualified as low risk? 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 
·None 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

N'one 

____ yes 

Unqualified 

X no ----

X none reported ----
X no 

X no 

X none reported 

Unqualified 

X no 

$500,000 

X no 


